IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO. SC02-389

THE STATE OF FLORIDA,

Petitioner,

vs.

ROBERTO RUIZ,

Respondent.

ON CERTIFIED REVIEW FROM THE THIRD DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL OF FLORIDA

INITIAL BRIEF OF PETITIONER

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH

Attorney General Tallahassee, Florida

MICHAEL J. NEIMAND Assistant Attorney General Bureau Chief Florida Bar No. 0239437

FRANK J. INGRASSIA

Assistant Attorney General Florida Bar No. 0116180 Office of The Attorney General Department of Legal Affairs 110 S.E. 6th Street - 9th Floor Ft. Lauderdale, Florida 33301 (954) 712-4600 Fax 712-4761

INTRODUCTION

Petitioner, THE STATE OF FLORIDA, was the prosecution in the trial court and the Appellee in the Third District Court of Appeal. Respondent, ROBERTO RUIZ, was the Defendant in the trial court and the Appellant in the Third District Court of Appeal. The parties will be referred to as Petitioner (or the State) and Respondent respectively. The symbol "R" denotes the record on appeal. The symbol "T" denotes minutes from the trial transcript. The letter "S" denotes the supplemental transcript.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

By Amended Information dated September 15, 1999, Respondent was charged with two counts of sexual battery, one count of burglary with intent to commit a sexual battery or assault, and one count of kidnapping for crimes occurring on January 3, 1998. (R8-11). Respondent was convicted by jury verdict of two counts of battery as lesser included offenses of the two counts of sexual battery; burglary of a structure with an assault or battery; and kidnapping. (R83-86). Respondent was sentenced on November 16, 1999 to concurrent terms of 364 days for the two counts of battery and 131 months for both the burglary and

kidnapping. (R90-91,134-136). Respondent appealed his judgment and sentence to the Third District Court of Appeal on December 16, 1999. (R181).

On June 20, 2001, the Third District Court of Appeal issued an Opinion which, in pertinent part reversed and remanded Respondent's conviction for burglary. The initial ruling panel concluded that the trial court had erroneously denied Respondent's motion for a judgment of acquittal for the burglary offense based upon this Court's holding in <u>Delgado v. State</u>, 776 So.2d 233 (Fla. 2000). In so ruling, the panel noted an awareness to the creation of Section 810.015, Fla. Stat.(2001) which statute expressly nullified <u>Delgado</u>. While noting its awareness to the legislation, the initial ruling panel noted that because the instant crime was committed prior to February 1, 2000, the nullification was inapplicable.

The State moved for Rehearing, Rehearing En Banc, or alternatively, for Certification on June 28, 2001. The Court granted the motion for Rehearing En Banc on September 5, 2001 and heard this case in conjunction with <u>Braggs v. State</u>, No.3D99-2201. On February 13, 2002, the Third District Court of Appeal denied Rehearing in this case and certified the question of whether the governing statute set forth above legislatively overruled <u>Delgado</u> for crimes committed on or before July 1,

2001. See, <u>Ruiz v. State</u>, <u>So.2d</u>, 2002 WL 214760 (Fla. 3d DCA February 13, 2002). The Third District also certified the same question, En Banc, in <u>Braggs</u> rendered on the same date. See, <u>Braggs v. State</u>, <u>So.2d</u>, 2002 WL 215474 (Fla. 3d DCA February 13, 2002). The Third District also stayed issuance of the mandate on February 27, 2002. By order rendered on February 26, 2002, this Court postponed its decision on jurisdiction and directed that the State's initial Brief be served on or before April 24, 2002 (after the grant of an extension).

The facts can be summarized as follows. Detective Hernandez investigated the assault inflicted upon Zoraya Cortina on the day after the attack. (T212-213,215). Hernandez observed blood spattered on the rug, and dresser and he indicated that Cortina's nose, eye, arm, and back were all bruised. (T214-215). Hernandez further testified that blood was spattered in a large amount. (T214).

Hernandez spoke to Respondent on January 4, 1998 and interviewed him at headquarters after administration of <u>Miranda</u> warnings. (T215-217). Respondent told Hernandez that he had a prior relationship with Cortina and he admitted that he went to her apartment on the day of the crime. (T218-219). Respondent denied hitting Cortina and told Hernandez that, while he noticed a bruise on Cortina's nose, she would not tell him about it.

(T219). Respondent also told Hernandez that he did not recall hitting Cortina. (T220).

On cross-examination, Hernandez stated that Respondent was arrested on January 4, 1998. (T223). Hernandez told Respondent that he was being accused of rape. (T237). Respondent told Hernandez that Cortina had called him and asked to come by her apartment to pick his things up. (T238). Respondent had moved out of the apartment on December 26, 1997. (T242).

Dr. Vivian Sanchez also testified. (T249). Dr. Sanchez was an emergency room physician at Pan American Hospital at the time of the incident. (T249). Dr. Sanchez treated Cortina on January 5, 1998 and observed a bruise to the nose and right orbital area of the eye and dried blood in Cortina's nose. (T252). X-ray examination of the nose revealed a non-displaced fracture of the tip of the nose. (T253).

Cortina testified. (T261). Cortina stated that she dated Respondent from march to December of 1997. (T266). Respondent moved in with her on October 24, 1997 and moved out in December of 1997 because they were having problems. (T267-270). Respondent called her during the early morning hours of January 3, 1998 and asked to pick up his things from the apartment. (T270-271). Cortina told him to come by in the afternoon. (T271).

Respondent arrived unexpectedly at 10 a.m. on January 3, 1998. (T275). Raul, a friend of Cortina's, had come by earlier with a loaf of bread and some milk and asked to take a nap. (T273). Cortina permitted Raul to use her bedroom. (T273).

When Respondent arrived, Cortina let him in and told him that Raul was sleeping in her bed. (T276). Respondent told Raul to get dressed and after doing so, Raul left. (T277-278). Respondent then told Cortina's son that both Respondent and Cortina needed to talk in the bedroom. (T278).

Respondent shut the bedroom door and locked it. Respondent then hit Cortina across the nose and continued hitting her. (T279). Blood began running down Cortina's nose and Respondent told her not to play behind his back. (T280). Cortina screamed for her children to call 911, but Respondent covered her mouth and then forcibly pulled her into the bathroom. (T281-282). While in the bathroom, Respondent grabbed some peroxide toothpaste, and after placing it on his penis, forced his penis into Cortina's anus. (T283-284). Respondent made it a point to tell Cortina that "this is how Fidel treats his women in Cuba." (T284). Respondent ejaculated after five or ten minutes. (T285).

Respondent then took Cortina back to the bedroom and, while covering her mouth, raped and sodomized her again in bed.

(T286-287). Respondent then proceeded to bring Cortina back to the bathroom and while holding the bathroom door from the bedroom (while Cortina was in the bathroom), called his boss to tell him that he would be late for work because Cortina had a seizure. (T288-289). Respondent told Cortina that if she called the police, he would kill her. (T290).

Cortina took a shower after Respondent left. (T290). After visiting her mother later in the day and advising her what had taken place, Cortina reported the incident on the next morning. (T292-293).¹ Cortina was examined by Dr. Rao at the Jackson Memorial Rape Treatment Center on January 4, 1998. (T360-361). The examination revealed facial injuries and otherwise noted a normal pelvic and anal examination. (T366-367,370).

After the State rested, Respondent moved for a judgment of acquittal with respect to both the burglary and kidnapping counts. (T390). The trial court denied the motion, noting especially for the kidnapping that Respondent had moved Cortina

¹Cortina's testimony was corroborated to a large degree from the testimony of her son. (S3). Cortina's son was five years old at the time of the incident. He identified Respondent and stated that Respondent went into the bedroom with his mother and he heard fighting. (S5,8-9). Cortina told him to call 911, but he did not know how to do so. (S9). Cortina's son also stated that his mother was bleeding from the nose when she left the bedroom. (S10). This testimony was presented by videotape and Cortina's son told the trial judge that he knew the difference between the truth and lies. (S3-4).

from both the bedroom to the bathroom, and back to the bedroom, and then back to the bathroom, all of which helped to both keep her confined and prevent detection. (T393).

Respondent took the stand in his defense. (T399). Respondent testified that he moved in with Cortina in October of 1997 and moved out in December of 1997. (T403). Respondent noted that he left some of his belongings when he left and Cortina called him to retrieve them. (T406). Respondent picked up these belongings on the day in question and he arrived at 10 a.m. at which time Cortina let him into the apartment. (T408,410). Respondent observed a naked man in the bedroom and the man left after getting dressed. (T411-414). After placing some of his things in his car, Respondent testified that he was invited into the bedroom by Cortina. (T414).

Cortina told Respondent that she was sorry, but Respondent then hit Cortina in the face two or three times. (T415-416). Respondent stated that he did not barricade the bedroom or bathroom door and that he made no threats and did not engage in sex. (T416-418). The authorities questioned Respondent the next day. (T419). Respondent denied that he had either raped, burglarized, or engaged in the kidnapping of Cortina. (T422). Respondent did acknowledge that he lied to Detective Hernandez about not remembering if he had hit Cortina. (T423).

Afer the defense rested, Respondent renewed his motion for a judgment of acquittal for the kidnapping count by arguing that the acts have to be separate and apart from the sexual batteries or burglaries. (T480-481). The trial court again denied the motion. (T482-483).

As previously noted, the jury returned a verdict convicting Respondent of two counts of battery as a lesser offense of sexual battery, and guilty as charged for burglary and kidnapping. The Third District Court of Appeal reversed the conviction for burglary and certified the following question to this Court as one of great public importance:

WHETHER SECTION ONE OF CHAPTER 2001-58, LAWS OF FLORIDA, HAS LEGISLATIVELY OVERRULED <u>DELGADO V. STATE</u>, 776 So. 2d 233

(Fla. 2000) FOR CRIMES COMMITTED ON OR BEFORE JULY 1, 2001.

POINT ON APPEAL

I. WHETHER SECTION ONE OF CHAPTER 2001-58, LAWS OF FLORIDA, HAS LEGISLATIVELY OVERRULED <u>DELGADO V. STATE</u>, 776 So. 2d 233 (Fla. 2000) FOR CRIMES COMMITTED ON OR BEFORE JULY 1, 2001?

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

Chapter 2001-58, Section 1, Laws of Florida clearly applies to this case. In this piece of legislation, the Legislature nullified the holding of this Court in Delgado v. State, 776 So.2d 233,240 (Fla. 2000). The nullification of Delgado does not, as Respondent now urges, run afoul of the Separation of Powers doctrine. The nullification merely restored the state of the law to what it had been prior to <u>Delgado</u> for crimes of burglary committed on or before July 1, 2001. This law was supported, as reflected in the legislation itself, by a multitude a case law precedent from both this Court (dating back to 1983) and that of the Third District Court of Appeal as rendered in Ray v. State, 522 So.2d 963 (Fla. 3d DCA 1988). The Legislature merely acted to swiftly respond to this Court's apparent misinterpretation of legislative intent for "consent entry" burglaries by nullifying <u>Delqado</u> in the first legislative session after the decision became final.

Additionally, even if this Court were to decide the first point against the State, it is submitted that this Court should recede from <u>Delgado</u>. Both settled principles of stare decisis and the now expressed intent of the Legislature set forth in Chapter 2001-58, run afoul of the conclusion of the four member majority of this Court in <u>Delgado</u>. In light of these facts, this Court should reexamine the soundness of its holding in

<u>Delgado</u> and follow the well reasoned dissenting opinion of Chief Justice Wells as outlined in the <u>Delgado</u> dissent.

Finally, there is no violation of the Ex Post Facto Clause in applying the legislation to this case. Respondent's conduct amounted to a crime under case law precedent of both this Court and the Third District's precedent in <u>Ray</u> at the time of Respondent's trial. Indeed, all the legislation did was to restore the law of burglary to what it was before being changed by the <u>Delgado</u> opinion. Any "decriminalization" of conduct flowing from <u>Delgado</u> resulted from the action of this Court and not the passage of legislation. A legislative restoration of the law is not a change in the law nor can it be interpreted as an increase in punishment for the crime of burglary. Ex Post Facto Clause analysis is inapplicable because the legislature merely "recriminalized," as supported by 17 years of prior judicial precedent, what the <u>Delgado</u> majority "decriminalized."

ARGUMENT

I. SECTION ONE OF CHAPTER 2001-58, LAWS OF FLORIDA, HAS LEGISLATIVELY OVERRULED <u>DELGADO</u> <u>V. STATE</u>, 776 So. 2d 233 (Fla. 2000) FOR CRIMES COMMITTED ON OR BEFORE JULY 1, 2001.

A. LEGISLATIVE INTENT

The initial directive set forth by the question certified by the Third District Court of Appeal is whether Section 1 of Chapter 2001-58 has legislatively overruled <u>Delgado</u>. The State submits that it does. Respondent argued in the Third District Court of Appeal that application of the enactment here runs afoul of the separation of powers doctrine. This argument, however, ignores that the <u>Delgado</u> decision overruled 17 years of prior judicial precedent interpreting the burglary statute. The Legislature never attempted to abrogate any of those rulings because they were consistent with the legislative intent.

On May 25, 2001, the Governor signed HB 953. HB 953 creates Section 810.015, Fla. Stat.(2001), providing for a retroactive operation to February 1, 2000 (two days prior to the rendering of the initial <u>Delgado</u> decision)²; and further clarifying the definition of burglary to nullify the holding of <u>Delgado</u>. HB 953 further prospectively amends the definition of burglary set forth in Section 810.02, for offenses committed subsequent to July 1, 2001. Both of these actions must be understood to

²The initial opinion of this Court in <u>Delgado</u> was rendered on February 3, 2000. See, <u>Delgado v. State</u>, _____So.2d____, 25 Fla. L. Weekly S79 (Fla. February 3, 2000).

properly assess the scope of the enactment underlying HB 953.

The prospective amendment, effective subsequent to July 1, 2001, amends the definition of burglary to include within the definition of burglary, notwithstanding a licensed or invited entry into a dwelling, structure or conveyance, one who remains either (a) surreptitiously, with the intent to commit an offense therein; (b) after permission to remain therein has been withdrawn, with intent to commit an offense therein; or (c) to commit or attempt to commit a designated forcible felony defined under Section 776.08. This measure is obviously designed to encompass certain culpable conduct where the actor, while initially invited or licensed to be in the structure, nevertheless remains therein either surreptitiously with an intent to commit an offense; after permission has been withdrawn, with an intent to commit an offense; or in attempting or committing a forcible felony defined under Section 776.08.

In addition to prospectively amending the burglary statute to encompass the type of conduct set forth above, the Legislation also creates Section 810.015, Fla. Stat.(2001) to cover offenses committed on or before July 1, 2001, including the offense committed in this case. Section 810.015 contains a retroactive date to February 1, 2000 in order to nullify the holding of <u>Delgado</u>. The February 1, 2000 date is significant,

because it reflects a time period two days prior to the initial rendering of the Delgado decision on February 3, 2000. The purpose of HB 953 is set forth in the House Summary provided with the legislation. The clearly indicated legislative purpose was to revise the definition and criteria of burglary to correct a court opinion (i.e., <u>Delgado</u>) determined to be contrary to legislative intent and prior Florida case law. HB 953 also retains the current definition of burglary for offenses committed on or before July 1, 2001 (such as that committed by Defendant here) and revises the definition for offenses committed after July 1, 2001, to clarify the distinction between merely entering a dwelling, structure, or conveyance with intent to commit an offense and remaining, surreptitiously or after permission to remain has been withdrawn.

The Third District's initial panel Opinion in this case expressly noted that <u>Delgado</u> was nullified, but noted that the nullification was limited to February 1, 2000, and, therefore, not applicable because the crime here occurred prior to that date.³ The initial panel Opinion simply misconstrued the

³February 1, 2000 was the selected date because the Florida Supreme Court had noted that its rule would not apply retroactively to cases that were final before it was issued. See, <u>Delgado v. State</u>, 776 So.2d 233,241 (Fla. 2000). The February 1, 2000 operative date also reflects a time period two days prior to the rendering of the initial decision in <u>Delgado</u>.

purpose and meaning of the legislation. It is clear from the statute that the Legislature intended that <u>Delgado</u> be a nullity (it simply does not exist), that the statute as passed be retroactive to February 1, 2000, two days before the initial <u>Delgado</u> decision was decided. The obvious purpose was to return the state of the law to what it had been prior to the time when <u>Delgado</u> was decided. This is so because the legislation makes crystal clear that this Court was incorrect in assessing legislative intent in the <u>Delgado</u> decision.

This obvious interpretation is clearly supported from the examination of the legislation itself:

"Section 1. Section 810.015 Florida Statutes, is created to read:

810.015. Legislative findings and intent; burglary--

(1) The Legislature finds that the case of <u>Delgado v. State</u>, Slip Opinion No. SC88638 (Fla. 2000) was decided contrary to legislative intent and the case law of this state relating to burglary prior to <u>Delgado v. State</u>. The Legislature finds that in order for a burglary to occur, it is not necessary for the licensed or invited person to remain in the dwelling, structure, or conveyance surreptitiously.

(2) It is the intent of the Legislature that the holding in <u>Delgado v. State</u>, Slip Opinion SC88638 be nullified. It is

further the intent of the Legislature that S. 810.02(1)(a) be construed in conformity with <u>Raleigh v. State</u>, 705 So.2d 1324 (Fla. 1997); <u>Jimenez v. State</u>, 703 So.2d 437 (Fla. 1997); <u>Robertson v. State</u>, 699 So.2d 1343 (Fla. 1997); <u>Routly v. State</u>, 440 So.2d 1257 (Fla. 1983); and <u>Ray v. State</u>, 522 So.2d 963 (Fla. 3d DCA 1988). This subsection shall operate retroactively to February 1, 2000."

The Third District took up the issue En Banc in <u>Braggs</u>, and concluded, albeit incorrectly, that Section 1 of Chapter 2001-58 is merely a statement of intent that the <u>Delgado</u> decision should be nullified.⁴ See, <u>Braggs v. State</u>, <u>supra</u>.

Through the process of nullification, the Legislature made it clear that this Court misinterpreted legislative intent in the <u>Delgado</u> ruling. This Court has also acknowledged this fact in <u>Jimenez v. State</u>, ______So.2d _____, 26 Fla. L. Weekly S625 (Fla. September 26, 2001). The Legislature clarified the burglary statute at the first full legislative session after <u>Delgado</u> was decided (and which decision changed the long standing interpretation of the burglary statute under prior case law

⁴The Third District did, however, certify the issue of whether the operative legislation overruled <u>Delgado</u> and all of the Opinions, majority, concurring, and dissenting all seemed to agree that this Court was quite likely to recede from <u>Delgado</u> in light of <u>Jimenez v. State</u>, ____So.2d____, 26 Fla. L. Weekly S625 (Fla. September 26, 2001).

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