# IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO: SCO2-389

LOWER CASE NO. 3D99-3187

THE STATE OF FLORIDA,

Petitioner,

VS.

ROBERTO RUIZ,

APPELLEE.

## ON PETITION FOR DISCRETIONARY REVIEW

BRIEF OF RESPONDENT ON THE MERITS

BENNETT H. BRUMMER, PUBLIC DEFENDER Eleventh Judicial Circuit of Florida 1320 N.W. 14th Street, 5th Floor Miami, Florida 33125 305-545-1600

and

MAY L. CAIN, ESQUIRE

Special Assistant Public Defender CAIN & SNIHUR
Kislak National Bank Building
1550 N.E. Miami Gardens Drive, Suite

304

North Miami Beach, Florida 33179 305-956-9000 Fla. Bar No. 301310

COUNSEL FOR RESPONDENT

####

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

# SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

The legislature of the State of Florida cannot "legislatively" overrule a decision of the Supreme Court

of Florida retroactively. Section 810.105, <u>Fla. Stat</u>, (2001) is unconstitutional since it violates Article 2, Section 3, of the Florida Constitution, separation of powers of government.

Further, Section 810.105, <u>Fla. Stat.</u> (2001) is violative of Article I, Section 10 of the Florida Constitution and Article I, Section 10 of the Constitution of the United States, as it constitutes an expost facto law since it was passed to apply retroactively and changes the substantive law of burglary.

The trial court erred by its denial of the Respondent's Motions for Judgment of Acquittal where the movement of the alleged kidnapping was of the kind that was inherent in the sexual batteries alleged (the Respondent was convicted of battery as a lesser included offense on both counts) and the evidence was insufficient to establish burglary. Therefore, the motions for judgment of acquittal on the kidnapping and burglary charges should have been granted.

#### <u>ARGUMENT</u>

I.

SECTION 810.105, FLA. STAT. (2001) DOES NOT APPLY TO THIS CASE BECAUSE IT IS UNCONSTITUTIONAL IN THAT IT VIOLATES THE SEPARATION OF POWERS PROVISIONS OF ARTICLE 2, SECTION 3 OF THE FLORIDA CONSTITUTION.

Section 810.105, Fla. Stat. (2001) is unconstitutional because it violates the separation of powers provisions of the Florida Constitution contained in Article 2, Sec. 3. While a legislative body is free to amend laws it believes a court has misinterpreted, it cannot "recede" from the opinion of such a court. See Means v. Northern Cheyenne Tribal Court, 154 F. 3d 941, 946 (9th Cir. 1998). The Respondent will discuss some legislative and judicial history with respect to the burglary statute, prior to

making the Article 2, Sec. 3, argument, as it is very relevant to this Court's decision in this matter.

The Respondent herein was charged by amended information filed on September 15, 1999 and convicted of a burglary allegedly occurring on January 3, 1998. (R. 8-11). This was prior to the enactment of the subject statute. However, for the constitutional reasons contained herein it should not be applied retroactively, as will be discussed in issue II herein.

With respect to the burglary conviction, it was the Respondent's position before the Third District Court of Appeal that the case of <u>Delgado v. State</u>, 776 So. 2d 233 (Fla. 2000) is controlling. In <u>Delgado</u> this Court recognized that when an individual enters a home with consent, and later turns violent, that this sudden turn of events does not mean that every time a crime is committed inside of a home it is also a burglary. This Court reviewed the long and tortured history of burglary cases in this state including the case of <u>Miller v. State</u>, 733 So. 2d 955 (Fla. 1999) and the Third District Court of

Appeal's decision in <u>Ray v. State</u>, 522 So. 2d 963 (Fla. 3d DCA, 1988) which discussed the "remaining in" portion of Florida's burglary statute, Section 810.02, Fla. Stat. In <u>Ray</u>, the Third District Court of Appeal noted in pertinent part, in footnote 3:

The definition of burglary at common law included breaking and entering with the intent to commit a felony. Burglary was thus conceived of as an invasion of the right of habitation or of the possessory property rights of another. Cannon v. State, 102 Fla. 928, 136 So. 695 (1931); State v. <u>Hicks</u>, 421 So. 2d 510 (Fla. 1982). The breaking requirement -- that is, "the actual or constructive use of some force against a part of a building in effecting an **unconsented** entry," State v. High, 281 So. 2d 356, 357 (Fla. 1973) (emphasis in original) -- meant that initial entry had to be trespassory. As Professor LaFave notes, "[t]he law was not ready to punish one who had been 'invited' in any way to enter the dwelling. law sought only to keep out intruders, and thus anyone given authority to come into the house could not be committing a breaking when he so entered." 2 W. LaFafve & A. Scott, Substantive Criminal Law, Sec. 8.13, at 464-65(1986) (footnote omitted).

Because a host of absurd distinctions grew up around the breaking requirement, many states, including Florida, simply excised or omitted it from their statutes. See 2 W. LaFave & A. Scott, supra, at 466, 477. Although Florida has eliminated the "breaking" requirement, the entry must still be unlawful, thus retaining the

trespassory aspect of the crime. Thus, consent to entry is a defense to this charge. State v. Hicks, 421 So. 2d 510. Ray at page 964.

This Court was concerned about the situation where the suspect enters lawfully and subsequently secrets himself or herself from their host. Delgado at 238. This Court agreed with the Third District Court of Appeal's reasoning wherein the appellate Court noted that a person would not ordinarily tolerate another remaining in their home in order to commit a crime, so that the consent to enter would be withdrawn and the defendant would be unlawfully remaining in the home pursuant to the burglary statute. However, this Court noted that if such reasoning were to be applied, any crime, including misdemeanors, committed on another's property that would not normally qualify as felonies would suddenly become burglary. <u>Delgado</u> at 237-238. In Delgado it is noted (as many Florida cases hold) that consensual entry is an affirmative defense to the charge of burglary and the burden is on the defendant to establish that there was consent to enter, and that this affirmative defense can also be established by the

evidence presented by the State. Delgado at 238.

This Court stated that the question before the Court is "whether the Legislature intended to criminalize the particular conduct in this case as burglary when it added the phrase 'remaining in' to the burglary statute."

Delgado, infra. In answering this question, this Court determined that the "remaining in" clause and the "unless" clause of the burglary statute is limited to the defendant who "surreptitiously remains." Delgado at page \*.

In <u>Delgado</u>, this Court <u>interpreted</u> the statute passed by the Legislature. This Court acted in good faith and did its job. If the legislature had been more specific in its legislation, at that time, there would not have been a need for judicial interpretation. The Legislature cannot now amend a statute retroactively that has an effect on substantive legal rights, due to its own lack of specificity. It is constitutionally unacceptable for the legislature to overrule a decision of this Court retroactively. Such legislative action violates the fundamental principal of separation of powers as contained

in Article 2, Sec. 3, of the Florida Constitution which provides:

## Sec. 3 Branches of Government

The powers of the state government shall be divided into legislative, executive and judicial branches. No person belonging to one branch shall exercise any powers appertaining to either of the other branches unless expressly provided herein.

No one branch of government has the right to invade the sphere of another branch of state government. White v. Johnson, 59 So. 2d 532 (Fla. 1952). In Simmons v. State, 36 So. 2d 207 (Fla. 1948), at 208, the Supreme Court of Florida held:

The preservation of the inherent powers of the three branches of government--legislative, executive, and judicial--free from encroachment or infringement by one upon the other, is essential to the safekeeping of the American system of constitutional rule.

This statement is found (11 Am.Jr., p.908):

"Any legislation that hampers judicial action or interferes with the discharge of judicial functions is unconstitutional."

With respect to HB 953 (Chapter 2001-58, Sec. 1, Laws of Florida) herein, it should be noted that the

Legislature passes a statute which states:

Section 1. Section 810.015, Florida Statutes, is created to read:

- 810.015 Legislative findings and intent; burglary.--
- (1) The Legislature finds that the case of Delgado v. State, Slip Opinion No. SC88638 (Fla. 2000) was decided contrary to legislative intent and the case law of this state relating to burglary prior to Delgado v. State. The Legislature finds that in order for a burglary to occur, it is not necessary for the licensed or invited person to remain in the dwelling, structure, or conveyance surreptitiously.
- (2) It is the intent of the Legislature that the holding in Delgado v. State, Slip Opinion No. SC 88638 be nullified. It is further the intent of the Legislature that s. 810.02(1)(a) be construed in conformity with Raleigh v. State, . . . This subsection shall operate retroactively to February 1, 2000.

This piece of legislation purports to overrule this Court and affirm certain other cases decided by the courts of Florida. If ever there was an example of one branch of government invading the sphere of another, this is it. By this legislation, the Legislature is engaging in judicial interpretation of its own prior statute retroactively. It has been held that the Separation of Powers Clause

prohibits the unlawful encroachment by one branch of government upon the powers of another branch. Simms v. Department of Health & Rehabilitative Services, 641 So. 2d 957 (Fla. 3d DCA 1994) rev. den. 649 So. 2d 870 (Fla. 1994). See also Office of the State Attorney of the Fourth Judicial Circuit of Florida v. Parrotino, 628 So. 2d 1097, 1099, (Fla. 1993); <u>In re Alkire's Estate v. Smith</u>, 198 So. 2d 475, 483 (Fla. 1940). In <u>Simms</u>, it was held that with respect to child custody proceedings, the fact that one branch of government has inherent authority does not mean that another branch does not. A test to determine same was announced by the Third District Court of Appeal in Simms, and that is to consider the "essential nature and effect of the governmental authority to be performed." id. at page 961.

The legislature's retroactivity language in the subject statute was expressly intended to overrule this Court's holding in <u>Delgado</u>. The operative date for retroactive application was February 1, 2000, two days prior to this Court's decision in <u>Delgado</u>. In <u>State v.</u>

Smith, 547 So. 2d 613 (Fla. 1989) this Court addressed a similar situation where the legislature attempted to overturn this Court's prior ruling in Carawan v. State, 515 So. 2d 616 (Fla. 1987). After the Carawan decision, the legislature passed an amendment to "override the interpretation [this Court] adopted in Carawan and to restore the legislative intent...pre-Carawan." Smith at 616. This Court rejected the retroactivity of the legislative enactment intended to abrogate Carawan on the basis of both ex post facto application and separation of powers prohibitions.

The essential nature of the judiciary is to interpret statutes and the constitution. Locke v. Hawkes, 595 So. 2d 32 (Fla. 1992). If we permit the Legislature to overrule our courts, particularly our Supreme Court, there is no separation of the Judicial branch from the Legislative branch of our government.

In <u>Allen v. Butterworth</u>, 756 So. 2d 52 (Fla.2000) this Court held that as a general rule, whatever power is conferred upon the courts by the Constitution cannot be

enlarged or abridged by the Legislature. See also <u>Walker</u> <u>v. Bentley</u>, 678 So. 2d 1265 (Fla. 2d DCA 1995) (quoting <u>Simmons v. State</u>, 160 Fla. 626, 628, 36 So. 2d 207, 208 (Fla. 1948): "Any legislation that hampers judicial action or interferes with the discharge of judicial functions is unconstitutional").

It should also be noted that the case of <u>State v.</u>

<u>Lyons</u>, FSC Case no. SC01-1704 is presently pending in this Court with the issue as raised in the Petitioner/State's Brief on Jurisdiction being:

whether the Second District Court of Appeal, in denying rehearing based upon an opinion of the Third District, misapprehended the import and meaning of the Florida Legislature's nullification of <u>Delgado</u>, and thus is in conflict with prior Florida Supreme Court precedent.

This Court has not yet ruled on the jurisdictional issue to date.

In conclusion, permitting the Legislature to overrule the Supreme Court of Florida in a matter of judicial interpretation of a statute violates the separation of powers doctrine contained in Article 2, Sec. 3 of the Florida Constitution and renders the statute unconstitutional and inapplicable to the case at bar.

II.

ANY APPLICATION OF SECTION 810.105, FLA. STAT. (2001) IS BE VIOLATIVE OF THE EX POST FACTO CLAUSES OF THE FLORIDA CONSTITUTION AND THE CONSTITUTION OF THE UNITED STATES.

The application of Section 810.105, <u>Fla. Stat.</u> (2001) violates the prohibition of ex post facto laws provided in

Article I, Section 10 of the Florida Constitution and Article I, Section 10 of the United States Constitution.

Article I, Section 10 of the Florida Constitution provides:

No bill of attainder, ex post facto law or law impairing the obligation of contracts shall be passed.

The application of this amended burglary statute to the case at bar, retroactively, constitutes an ex post facto application of this statute. The statutes in effect at the time of the commission of a crime controls as to the offenses for which the perpetrator can be convicted as well as the punishments which may be imposed. State v. Smith, 547 So. 2d 613, 616 (Fla. 1989). In the case of Richardson v. Moore, 754 So. 2d 64 (Fla. 3d DCA 2000) the Third District Court of Appeal held the application of the habitual violent felony offender statute, which was amended to add aggravated battery as a qualifying offense, to defendant convicted of aggravated battery occurring before the effective date of the amendment to have violated the prohibition against ex post facto laws.

In <u>State v. Hootman</u>, 709 So. 2d 1357, 1359 (Fla. 1998) this Court held that an ex post facto laws is one which:

punishes as a crime an act previously committed, which was innocent when done; which makes more burdensome the punishment for a crime, after its commission, or which deprives one charged with a crime of any defense available according to law at the time when the act was committed." citing Collins v. Youngblood, 497 U.S. 37, 42, 110 S. Ct. 2715, 2719, 111 L. Ed. 2d 20 (1990)(quoting Beazell v. Ohio, 269 U.S. 167, 169-70, 46 S. Ct. 68, 68-69, 70 L. Ed. 2d 216 (1925).

See also Lynce v. Mathis, 519 U.S. 433, 117 S. Ct. 891, 137 L. Ed. 2d 63 (1997) wherein the United States Supreme Court held that in order for a law to be ex post facto, it must be "retrospective" meaning that it must apply to "events occurring before its enactment" and must "disadvantage the offender affected by it 'by altering the definition of criminal conduct or increasing the punishment for the crime."

According to <u>Hootman</u> at page 1359 the necessary inquiry is whether a change in the law "alters the definition of criminal conduct or increases the penalty by which a crime is punishable..." In the case at bar, it is

clear on its face that the Legislature is attempting to retroactively re-interpret its own statute which clearly changes the definition of the crime of burglary as interpreted by this Court in <u>Delgado</u>.

Mr. Ruiz entered the alleged victim's residence with consent and with her permission. In fact, she believed that he still had her key. There was no issue as to the entering. The burglary statute was interpreted by this Court in Delgado and applied to the facts of Mr. Ruiz's case by the Third District Court of Appeal, for a finding that his burglary conviction should be reversed.

The purported clarification of the legislative intent set forth in the amended burglary statute is not a clarification, but rather a substantive revision to the burglary statute which expanded the definition of burglary further than it was expanded at the time of the alleged commission of this offense. The legislature has no authority to first, trample on judicial authority, and next to make a law that effects substantive criminal law and apply it retroactively. There are at least two

constitutional prohibitions that this law violates. It is unconstitutional on its face and as applied in the case at bar.

THE TRIAL COURT ERRED BY ITS DENIALS OF THE RESPONDENT'S MOTIONS FOR JUDGMENT OF ACQUITTAL ON (A): THE KIDNAPPING COUNT WHEN THE EVIDENCE WAS INSUFFICIENT TO SUSTAIN A CONVICTION FOR KIDNAPPING WHERE THE MOVEMENT INVOLVED WAS SLIGHT AND INHERENT IN THE OTHER CRIMES CHARGED, AND (B) ON THE BURGLARY CHARGE WHERE THE EVIDENCE WAS INSUFFICIENT THAT THE RESPONDENT ENTERED WITH THE INTENT TO COMMIT A CRIME.

The Respondent was charged in a four count information with

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